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Al-Bassam & Co.
Allied Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders

Takween Advanced [ndustries

(A Seud: Joint Stock Company)
Al-Khobar, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Takween Advanced Industries - & Saudi Joint Stock
Company {the “Company™) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “the Group™), which comprise the consoli-
dated statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017, and the consolidated statements of profit or loss end
other comprehensive income, changes in equity and of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the sccompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in eli material respects, the consol-
idated financial position of the Group as st December 31, 2017, its consolidated financial performance and its consol-
idated cash flows for the yeer then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudj Organization for
Centified Public Accountants (“SOCPA™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internationa! Standards on Auditing (ISAs} as endorsed in the Kingdom
of Saudi Arabia. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financie! Statements” section of our report. We ere indepzndent of the Group in accord-
ance with the professional code of conduct and ethics that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that gre
relevan! to our audit of the consolidated financial stetements and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have ohtained is sufficient and appropriate
to pravide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financinl statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statemenis as a whole, end in forming our opinion therzon, and we do not provide a scpurate
opinion on these matters, For each matter listed below, our description on how our audit have sddressed this matter is

set below:
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Al-Bassam & Co.
Allied Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

The key sudit matter Haow the matter was addressed
Revenue Recognition
As of December 31, 2017, the Group had recognized revenue | Our procedures included the following:
of SR 1,248 million (2616: SR 1,416 million).

« Assessed the design and implementation, end tested
The group has several different revenue streams under both | the operating effectiveness of relevant controls aver
plastic and nor-woven products. the revenue cycle as per the Group’s policy,

We consider revenue as a key audit matter being the key Performed substantive test of details and analytical

business element for the operations of the Group, The timing | procedurss,

and amount of revenue recognized have material impact on

the financial performance of the group. » Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s revenue

recognition accounting policies by considering the re-

Refer to note 4.3 to the congolidated financial statements for] quirements of relevant accounting standards,

the significant accounting policy.

+ Performed detailed analytical review for the various
elements of revenue / sales and assessed revenue cut-
off procedures,

« Tested manual journals posted to revenue to identify
unusual or irregular items, and

Tested sales transactions by comparing sales data for
a sufficient period before year-end to sales invoices,
shipping documentation, or other appropriste evi-
dence to determine that the revenue recognition crite-
ria were met and the sales transactions were recorded

in the proper period.
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Al-Bassam & Co.
Allied Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

The key audit matter

Change in Financial Reporting Framework

Fer all years up to and including the year ended December
31, 2016, the Group has prepared and presented its audited
consolidated financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles issued by SOCPA,

How the matter was sddressed

The Group have appointed an independent consultant
for the mansition to IFRSs where GAP analysis were
made to identify changes in accounting policies and
treatments, presentation and disclosures in the financial
statements.

As # result of the regulatory requirements in the Kingdom of
Saudi Arabia, for financial periods starting January 1, 2017,
the Group has presented its financial statements in
accordance with IFRS as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and cther standards end pronouncements that are
issued by SOCPA in this respect.

Accordingly, the eccompanying consolidated financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2017, have been
prepared in accordance with the requirements of IFRS as
endorsed in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and IFRS -1- “First
time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards.”

In compliance with these requirements, GAP analysis was
performed to determine differences between the previous
SOCPA framework and IFRS including the adjustments and
disclosures required. Based on the analysis, the Group has
assessed the impact of transitioning from SOCPA 1o IFRS
and transition edjustments were accordingly made to the
consolidated financial statements as at Jenuary 1, 2016 and
December 31, 2016.

We considered this as a key audit matter as the transitional
adjustments due to the change in the financial reporting
framework and its significant impact on the consolidated
financial stalements from a recognition, measurement and
disclosure perspective had required sdditional focus during
our audit.

Refer to note 30 to the consolidated financial statements for
details of transition and reconciliation adjustments in this
respect.

We performed the following procedures in respect of

transition to IFRSs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia:

* We had a meeting with the consultant to share

commenis on the IFRSs transition

adjustments,

report on

» Obtained an understanding of the GAP analysis

performed by the consubtant to identify all significant
differenices between previous reporting framework
and IFRS as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia
which can impact the Group's financial statements,

= Assessed the appropriateness of the implementation

of IFRS, as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saud Arabia,
in accordance with provisions of IFRS 1 and
management's decisions in this respect,

+ Assessed the appropriateness of accounting policies

adopted,

+ Tested the transition adjustments by considering the

GAP analysis, the underlying financial information
and the computation of these adjustments, and

= Asgessed the appropriateness of disclosures made for

the impact of transition from SOCPA to IFRS.
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Al-Bassam & Co.
Allied Accountants

INDEFENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters (Continued)

The key audit matter

How the matter was addressed

Impairment of non-current assets

Non-current assets as of December 31, 2017 amounted to SR
1,462.87 miilion (2016: SR 1,545.03 miilion) including good-
will of SR 323,58 million (2016; SR 323.58 millicn) on ac-
count of pest-acquisition and tangible assets of SR 1,126.33
million (2016: SR 1,207.62 million).

Management conduct impairment review on an annual basis
to assess whether there is any potentia! impairment. These re-
views are made using valuation methods to determine the ex-
pected recoverable amounts of these sasets. Such methods in-
clude assumptions related to future sales volume, prices, op-
erating assets, growth rates, terminal value and other related
rssets.

We considered this as & key audit matter due to significant
judgement and key assumptions involved in the impairment
assessment process.

(Refer note 4.2, 4,11 and 4,13 for policy, and note 8 and 6
respectively for disclosure).

Qur procedures included the following:

= Assessed the design and implementation and tested
the effectiveness of Group’s controls around the im-
pairment process and evaluated key assumptions used
by management,

+ Reviewed the independent specialist valuation review
report on the reasonableness of the valuation method-
ology of goodwill and other tangible assets analysis
prepared by management. As part of the review, as-
sessed the reasonableness of key management as-
sumptions in respect of estimated future cash flows,
growth and discount rates and assessed the sensitivity
analysis on key assumptions,

= Compared key essumptions against historic trends,
business plans and industry benchmarks as applicable.
Additionally, we reviewed and assessed the future
business plans both from internal and external per-
spectives, and compared forecast to historical trends,

+ Checked the accuracy and completeness of the infor-
mation produced by management, that was used as the
basis of impairment assessment, and

Considered the adequacy of the group's disclosures in
terms of applicable accounting standard.

Trade receivables

As of December 31, 2017, the group had trade account re-
ceivables of SR 293.45 million {2015: SR 343.84 miliion),
net of allowance for doubtful debts of SR 38.09 million
(2016: SR 24.59 millions).

Allowance for impairment of trade receivables represents
managements’ best estimate of the impairment allowance re-
quired. Impairment allowance is a highly subjective area and
generally require a high level of judgment to be applied by
the management in the determination of impairment atiow-
ances as at fhe reporting date. In arriving to such judgements
analysis of historic customer payment trends and relevant as-
sociated risks is made. Due to the related subjectivity asso-
ciated with it, this is considered as a key audit matter.

Refer to note 4 to the consolidated financial statements for the
significant accounting policy and note 5 for critical account-
ing judgements and note 10 for the related disclosures.

Our audit procedures in response to the risk sssociated
with impairment of trade receivables covered assessing
the appropristeness of the corresponding impairment al-
lowances and the effectivencss of the management’s
contro] surrounding it as follows:

« We tested the Group's control on the determination,
review and monitoring of the impairment aliowance,

+ We focused our audit on the process for the identifica-
tion of loss events and control over the impairment
process, including the continuous re-assessmient by
managemntent,

+ We enguired management about the basis for policies
adopted. We have performed walkthrough and testing
of relevant key controls 1o determine whether they
were designed, implemented and operated effectively
throughout the year,

+ Assessed the Group’s poliey for allowance for impair-
raents and basis used in arriving to it, and

» Obtained g schedule for the reccivable ageing and re-
assessed the allowance required es per the Group's
adopted policy.
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Al-Bassam & Co.
Allied Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Key Audit Matters {Continued)

The key audit matter How the matter was addressed
Inventory Valuations:

As at December 31, 2017, the Group had inventories of SR | Our procedures included the following:
315.52 million {2016: SR 332.31 million), net of allowance
for slow moving inveatories of SR 25,11 million (2016: SR | » Attending the physicel inventory count at the year end
8.35 million). and assessing the adequacy of controls over the exist-
ence of inventory,

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable
value and an allowance is made by the Group where neces- Reviewed the consistency of the accounting policy
sary, for slow moving inveniories. The management deter- | adopted by management,

mines the level of obsolesce of inventories considering the
nature, ageing profile, sales expectation using historic trends Assessing the design and implementation, and testing
and other related factors. Further, at each reporting date, the effectiveness of the Group's controls on the com-
management reviews the valuation of inventories and the putation and monitoring the allowance of slow-mov-
cost of inventories are written down where inventories are ing inventory,

forecasted to be sold &t below cost.

Assessed the Group's policies for monitoring and
We consider this as a key audit matter due to significant identifying slow maving inventories,

Jjudgements and key nssumptions applied by the management
in determining the aliowance for slow moving inventories : = Review the inventoty ageing reports used by the man-
and the level of inventories write down required based on net agement in the assessment of altowance for slow mov-
realizable value (NRV) assessment. ing inventories,

The accounting policy for inventory is outlined in note 4,10, | » Tested the net reelizable value of inventories by refer-
and a breakdown of inventories is presented in note 9., ence to recent prices, and

Evaluated the Group's policy for the valuation of in-
ventory and re-performed the calculation of the inven-

tory valuation.
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Al-Bassam & Co.
Allied Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

Other Information irncluded in the group's 2017 annusl report

The Board of Directors (“Directors”) are responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the in-
formation included in the Group’s annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
theteon, The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial stalements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form
of assurance or conclusion thercon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements ar our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report, and we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to com-
municate the matter to those charged with governance,

Responsibllities of the Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presemtation of the consolidated financial statements in accord-
ance with IFRSs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by SOCPA,
Company’s By-laws and the applicable requirements of Company’s regulations, and for such internal control as Directors
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstate-
ment, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
a5 a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of ac-
counting unless the Directors either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.

Auditar's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consaolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financia! statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is 2 high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect 2 material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated finencial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we
exercise professional judgment and maintaln professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

»  ldentify and assess the risks of material missistement of the consolidated finencial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide & basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appro-
priate in the circumstances, but niot for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and relate
disclosures made by management.
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Al-Bassam & Co.
Allied Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued})

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

»  Conclude on the sppropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether & material uncertainty exist related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that & meterial uncentainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosure in the consolidated financial statements or,
if such disclosure is inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 1o continue as
a going concern

+  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the dis-
closures and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the undetlying transactions and events in 8
manner that achieves fair presentation.

»  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidate financial statements, We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them sl relationships and other matters that may rea-
sonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with govemance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidsted financial statements of the cument period and are therefore the key sudit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we deterimine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Report on ather legal and regulatory requirements

Based on the information that has been made available 1o us while performing our audit procedures, nothing has come
to our attention that causes us to believe that the Company Is not in compliance, in &ll material respects, with the appli-
cable requirements of the Regulation for Companies in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Company's By-laws in so
far us they affect the preparation end presentation of the financial statements.
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TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2017

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and eguipment
Intangible assets

Goodwill

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Prepaid expenses and other recetvables
Held to maturity investments

Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital

Statutory reserve

Other reserves

{Accumulated losses) retained earnings

Liabilities

Non-current linbilities
Medium and long term loans
Employee benefits

Current liabilities

Current portion of medivm and long term loans

Short terin loans
Trade payable and other liabilities

Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

zir behalf by:

Df. Wissam Younes
CHief Financial Officer

Inancial statements were authorized for is

Pecember 31, December January |,

2017 31,2010 2016

{Note 30) {Note 3

Note SR 000 SR 000 SR -000
6 1,126,325 1,207,616 1,212,973
7 12,965 13,832 24,169
8 323,582 323,582 323,582
1,462,872 1,545,030 1.560.726

G 315,522 332312 456,705
i0 293,450 343,833 412,732
11 58,459 T 114,891
12 6,958 - .
13 41,583 43,269 186,794
715,972 797193 1.091.122

2,178,844 2.342.223 2.631.848

14.1 950,008 950,600 350,600
14.2 29,419 20419 20419
14.3 (53,415) {48.479) (6.439)
(186,210) {17981} 59,494

739,788 912,959 432,474

[5a 156,522 447,304 797,903
16 40,518 38165 47,559
397,340 483,469 B435.:164

13a 96,684 83,502 217,617
158 698,788 610,452 811.686
17 246,244 249 841 344,607
1,041,716 943,795 1,373,910

1,439,056 1,429,264 2219374

2,178,844 2,342,223 2.651.848

=

-

Jameel A. Al-Molhem
Managing Director

WA

ard of directors. on behaif of shareholders on March

Ah(lulm(‘)sﬁen M. Al-Othman
Deputy Chairman

The accompanying notes 1 through 32 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES

(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

December 3§, 2017 December 31, 2016

(Note 3

Note SR 000 SR 000
Revenue 19, 24 1,248,414 1,413,596
Cost of revenue 19,20, 24 (1,189,908) (£.214,020)
Gross profit 58,500 201,576
Administrative expenses 21 (88,256) (90.312)
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 22 (86,933) (73.863)
Research expenses {1,344) {1.399)
Operating (loss) profit (118,027) 35,602
Finance charges (51,628} (83.961)
Other income (expense) 23 6,988 (11,730}
Loss before zakat and income tax (162,667) {60.089)
Zakat and income tax 18.5 (3,568) {2,004}
Loss for the year (168,235) (62,093
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Irem that will not be reclassified subsequently to state-
ment of profit or loss
Remeasurement of employee benefit 16 {6,102} 3,508
Item that may be reclassified subsequently to statement
of profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operation 1,166 (45.548)
Total comprehensive loss for the year (173,171 (104.133)
Loss per share (SR) based on loss for the year
attributable to shareholders of the company
Basic and diluted loss per share 28 {1.77) (127

The accompanying financial statements were authorized for issue by board of directors, on behalf of shareholders on March
20. 2018 and signed on their behalf by:

ﬂ of &
w:’f"'_—__../ygb’"

Dr/Wissam Younes Jamee] A. Al-Molhem Abdulmoshen M. Al-Othman
Chlef Financial Officer Managing Director Deputy Chairman

The accompanying notes | through 32 form an integraf part of these consotidated finangial statements.
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TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2017

December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
SR ‘000 SR 000
Cash flows from operating activities:
Loss before zakat and income tax (162,667) (60089
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 123,039 (01,107
Amortization of intangible assets 2,875 3172
Write off of property, plant and equipment 414 -
Write off of intangible assets - 9.871
Loss on disposal of property, ptant and equipment - 34
Aliowance for inventories, net 16,740 3.050
Provision/ (reversal) for doubtiul debts 13,456 {(8.874)
Finance charges 51,628 83.961
Employee benefits 6,704 5.038
52,189 137.274
Movement in working capital:
Inventories 29 94.633
Trade receivables 36,892 79.096
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 19,318 37.114
Trade payable and other liabilities (3,690) {90.557)
Cash generated from operations 104,738 257.560
Finance charges paid (50,391) (82,308)
Zakat and income tax paid (5,535) (4.546)
Employee benefits paid (11,690} (12577
Net cash generated from operating activities 311z 158.129
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (42,110) {89.633)
Additions to intangible assets (1,617) -
Held to maturity investments (6,958) -
Net cash used in investing activities (50,685) (89.633)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Right issue - 600.000
Right issue cost - {15.382)
Change in short term loans 88,336 {208,234
Change in medium and long term loans (77,300) (484,716}
Net cash generated from (used in) financing activities 11,036 (101,332)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (2,527) (32.856)

. H ismYﬂunes
f Financial Officer

anieel A. Al-Molhem
Managing Director

14 <L

—7

Abdulmoshen #1. Al-Othman

Depuaty Chairman

The accompanying notes | through 32 form an intepral part of these consolidated linancial statements.
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TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDI JOINT $TOCK COMPANY)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the year
Foreign currency translation reserve

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Non-cash transactions:

Transfer from inventories to property, plant and equipment
Remeasurement loss (gain) on actuarial valuation

Transfer from property, plant and equipment to intangible assets

financial statements were authorized for issue
dn their behalt by:

The accompanyi

December 31, December 34,
2017 206
SR 000 SR 000
43,269 106,794
841 (30.6693
41,583 43.269

- 27341

6,102 {3.508)

391 2,706

p Wissam Younes
Chiel Financial Officer

_Fatieel A. Al-Molhem

Managing Director

¢ board of directors, on behall ef sharehoiders on

Abdulmoshen M/ALOthman
Deputy Chairman

The accompanying notes 1 through 32 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

1.
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b3

ORGANIZATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Takween Advanced Industries {“the Company™) is a Saudi Joint Stock Company registered in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabiz
under commercial registration number 2051044381 issued in Al Khobar on Muharram 9, 1432H (December 15, 2010},
‘The Company's share capital is SR 950 million divided into 95 million shares of 5R 10 each.

The Board of directors in a meeting held on December 17, 2015 had proposed to increase the share capitzl by SR 600
million by issuance of right shares to its shareholders. In the Extracrdinary General Assembty held on September 21,2016,
it was decided to issue the shares at par value i.e. SR 10, Right issue was subscribed in full and shares were issued to the
shareholders effective October 23, 2016. As a result of right issue during the yesr ended December 31, 2016, the share
capital of the Company was increased to SR 950 million comprising of 95 million shares of SR 1{ each. All the legal
formalities for increase in share capital were completed during 2016.

The Company’s registered office is lovated at Al Khobar, Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
The principal activities of the Group companies, each of which operates under individusl commercial registration, are:

Owning of factories with varicus plastic products manufacturing together with maintaining, operating and managing,
Production of dispesable polystyrene cups, lids and other plastic related products,

Production of non-woven fabrics,

Production of PET {Polyethylene Terephthalate) pre-forms,

Manufacturing of, and wholesale trading in plastic containers and films,

Marnufacturing of, and wholessle and retail trading in plastic containers and polyethylene cups, rolls and bags.
Marnaging and operating of industrial centers,

Owning of land for the purpose of establishing and developing factories,

Establishing industrial institutes and providing and coordinating for training caurses refated to developing of plastic prod-
uels,

Import and export, wholesale and retail trade in various kind of plustic products, and

Establishing, managing. operating and maintaining different industrial project.

STRUCTURE OF THE GROUP

The consolidated financial statements as at December 31, 2017 include the financial statements of the Company and its
following subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group™):

Name of consolidated subsidiary Effective ownership
2017 2016
Saudi Plastic Packaging Systems (“Saudi Packaging') 100% 100%
Advanced Fabrics Fectory Company (“SAAF™) 160% 1%
Al-Sharq Company for Plastic Industries Limited {“Al-Sharg™) 100% 1007
Ultra Pak Manufacturing Company (“Ultra Pak™) 108% 100%
New Marina for Plastic Industries Company (8.A.E.) (“New Marina™) 160% 100%%

During the year, as pant of the restructuring of the Group's operations, it was resolved to transfer the net essets in two of
its branches (located at Al-Youn and Al-Jamn) i.e, “Plastico” (Branches related to Takween) to Saudi Plastic Packaging
Systems (“Saudi Prckeging’) effective January 1, 2017. The book value of net assets transferred was SR 75.23 million,
Also during the year, the whole operation in one of the subsidiary “Ultra Pak” was ransferred lo Seudi Plastic Packaging
Systems (“Saudi Packaging™) effective January 1, 2017, The book value of net assets transferred was SR 104.63 million

The above transfer has no effect on the Group finencial statements,

13-



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDLJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2817

2, STRUCTLURE OF THE GROUP (Continued)

Summary of net assets transferred is as follows:

Plastico Ulra Pak Total
SR 000 SR 000 SR ‘000
ASSETS
Non-current sssetg
Property, plant and equipment 219,965 17,814 237,779
intangible assets 1,848 2,167 4,615
221,813 19,981 241,794
Current assets
Inventoties 81,731 - B1,731
Trade receivables 69.076 12,503 81,579
Prepaid expenses and other receivables 7.289 1,277 8,566
Due from related parties 173,665 101,793 175458
Cash and cash equivalent 6,673 5,272 11,945
338434 120,845 459,279
TOTAL ASSETS 560,247 140,826 701,073
LIABILITIES
Non-current llabillties
Long and medium term debt - 5,034 5,034
Employee benefits 6,089 2449 8,538
6,089 7483 13,572
Current liabilities
Current portion of long term loan - 2356 2,356
Short term {oan 200,189 20,000 220,189
Trade payables and other liabilities 83,337 3.685 87,222
Due to related parties 195,054 - 195,054
Zakat payable 150 2671 2,821
478,930 28,712 507,642
TOTAL LIABILITIES 485,01% 36,195 521,214
NET ASSETS TRANSFERRED AMONG THE GROUP
COMPANIES 75,228 104,631 £74,859




TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
{A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

3

31

BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of complisnce

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in eccordance with international Financial Reporting
Standards {"IFRS™) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements issued by the
Saudi Organization for Certified Public Accountants (“SGCPA™).

For years up (o and including the year ended December 31, 2016, the Group prepared its consolidated financial statements
in accordance with the sccounting standards issued by the Saudi Organization for Cenified Public Accountants
{"SOCPA™).

For financial periods starting January 1, 2017, and in accordance with the regutations applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia, the Group has presented its financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and other standards and pronouncements that are issued by SOCPA in this respect. The sccompanying financial
statements are the first annual {inancial statements prepered in accordance with IFRSs,

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirement of IFRS,
First-Time Adoption of International Finsncial Reporting Standards. The effects of [FRS edoplion on the financial
statements as at December 31, 2016 and January 1, 2016 are disclosed in note 30 to the sccompanying financial statements.

The Capitat Market Authority {CMA), the Government Qrganization in Kingdom of Saudi Arabia regulating the financial,
tegal and zdministrative matters for listed companies, has decided that the options to use the revaluation model for
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets in 1AS 16 and IAS 38 and the option to use the fair value model for
investment property in TAS 40 will not be available for the first three years post transition from 2017 to 2019 for listed
comparies. Upon completion of the aforementioned period, the CMA will study whether to continue to require the cost
model or whether to allow the application of the fair value / revaluation models. Under these circumstances, the Group
cannot avail these options for current financial year,

IFRS | allows first-time adopters certain exemptions upon transition from the retrospective application of certain
requirements under [FRS. IFRS 1 prohibits retrospective application of IFRS with respect to accounting estimates, but
ailows retrospective application of “de-recogpition of financial assets and liabilities”, "hedge accounting”, "non-
controlling interest”, "classification and measuremnent of financial assets™, "impairment of financial assets", "embedded
derivatives" and "government toans”. The Group has applied relevant IFRS on these transactions prospectively from
transaction date. The Group has applied optional exemplion as explained below: -

Goodwill

IFRS 3 Business Combinations has not been applied to either scquisitions of subsidiaries that are considered businesses
under {FRS, or acquisitions of interests in associates and joint ventutes that occurred before January 1, 2016, Use of this
exemption means that SOCPA carrying amounts of assets and finbilities, that are required to be recognized under [FRS, is
their deemed cost at the date of acquisition. After the date of scquisition, measurement is in eccordance with IFRS. Assets
and liahiities that do not qualify for recognition under 1FRS are excluded from the opening IFRS statement of financial
position, The Group did net recognize or exclude any previousty recognized amounts as a result of 1FRS recognition
requirements.

IFRS 1 also requires that the SOCPA carrying amount of goodwill must be used in the opening [FRS statement of financial
position {apart from sdjustments for gondwill impairment end recognition and derecognition of intangible assets). in
accordance with IFRS 1. the Group has tested goodwill for impairment at the date of transition to IFRS. No goodwill
impairment was deemed necessary at January 1, 2016,

-i5.



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
{ASAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3i, 2017
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BASIS OF PREPARATION {Continued)

Preparation of the consotidated financlal statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for the defined ben-
efit obligation which is recognized at the present value of future obligation using the projected unit credit method.

‘The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS required management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts in the consolidated
finaneial statements, These areas that are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

Standards issued and spplied effective January 1, 2017

The following new and revised standards and interpretations have been adopted in the curvent year, The adoption of these
standards have no material impact on the amounts reported in the accompanying consolidated financial statements:

Effective for annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

IAS 7 Digclosure Initlative (Amendments to IAS 7) January 1, 2017

The amendments require disclosures thet enable users of financial statements to
evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from eash flow and non-cash changes.

Group's financing activities, as disclosed in consolidated statement of cash Flows,
represents only cash flow changes. except for fingnce cost for which non cash
change is reflected in cash flow from operating activities.

T1AS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses

(Amendments to 1AS 12}

The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets for unrealized tapuary 1, 2017
losses on debt instruments measured at fair value,

The Group does not hold any debt instruments measured at fair value, hence, there
is no impact of this amendment on the consolidated financial statements.

-16-



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)
14 New standards, nmendiments and revised IFRS in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not applied the following new and revised [FRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Effective for annual periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

§FRS 9 Financial Instruments (revised versions in 2009, 2010, 2013 and 2014) January 1, 2018
IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification

and measurement of financial assets, |FRS 9 was subsequently amended in October

2010 to include requirements for the classification and measurement of financial lia-

bilities and for de-recognition, and in November 2013 to include the new requirements

for general hedge sccounting. Another revised version of IFRS 9 was issued in July

2014 mainly to include a) impairment requirements for financiaf assets and b) limited

amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by introducing a *fair

value through other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI) measurement category for

certain simple debt instruments,

A finalized version of IFRS 9 which contains accounting requirements for financial
instruments, replacing 1AS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement,

The standard contains requirements in the following areas:

Classification and measurement: Financial assets are classified by reference to the
business mode! within which they are held and their contractual cash flow character-
istics. The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces a ‘fair value through other comprehen-
sive income' category for certain debt instruments. Financial liabiities are classified
in a similar manner to under 1AS 39, however there are differences in the requirements
applying to the meesurement of an entity's own credit risk.

Impairment: The 2014 version of IFRS 9 introduces an 'expected credit loss' model
for the measurement of the impairment of financial assets, so it is no longer necessary
for a credit event 1o have occurred before a credit loss is recognized,

Hedge accounting: Introduces a new hedge accounting mode! that is designed to be
more closely aligned with how entities undertake risk management gctivities when
hedging financial and non-financial risk exposures.

De-recognition: The requirements for the de-recognition of financial assets and lia-
bilities are carried forward from 1AS 39,

Amendments to [FRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Relating to the ditferent effective Januvary 1, 2618
dates of IFRS 9 and the forthcoming new insurance contracts standard,

Amendments to 1AS 40 Investment Property: Amends paragraph 57 to state that an Jenuary 1, 2018
entity shal} transfer a property to, or from, investinent property when, and only when,
there is evidence of a change in use. A change of use occurs if property mests, or ceases
to meet, the definition of investinent property. A change in management’s intentions
for the use of a property by itself does not constitute evidence of a change in use. The
paragraph has been amended to state that the list of examples therein is non-exhaustive.

-17-



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

3.4 New standards, smendments and revised IFRS in Issue but not vet effective (Continued)

Effective for annusl periods
New and revised IFRSs beginning on or after

Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial Enstruments: Disclosures relating to disclosures When IFRS 9 is first applied
about the initial application of IFRS 9.

1ERS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures relating to the additional hedge account-
ing disclosures (and consequential amendmenis) resulting from the introduction of the
hedge eccounting chapter in [FRS 9.

IFRS i5 Revenue from contracts with customers: January 1, 2018
In May 2014, IFRS 15 was issued which established a single comprehensive model for

entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers. IFRS

15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including IAS 18 Revenue,

1AS 11 Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when it becomes effec-

tive.

The core principle of 1IFRS 15 s thet an entity should recognize revenue to depict the
transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the con-
sideration to which the entity expeets to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

Specifically, the standard introduces a 5-step approach ta revenue recognition:

Step 1; 1dentify the contract(s) with a customer.

Step 2: 1dentify the performance obligations in the contract.

Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.
Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

Under IFRS 15, an entity recognizes when {or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular performanee ob-
ligation is transferved to the customer, Far more prescriptive guidance has been added

in {IFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios. Furthenmore, extensive disclosures are re-
quired by [FRS 15,

Amendments 1o IFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers to clarity three as-
pects of the standard (identifying performance abligations, principal versus agent con-
siderations, and licensing) and to provide some transition relief tor moditied contracts
and completed contracts.

IFRS 16 Leases January 1, 2019
IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recopnize, measure, present and disclose

leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to

recognize assets and liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 12 months or less

or the underlying asset has 8 low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating

or finance, with IFRS 16°s approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from

its predecessor, [AS 17,

-18-



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

3.4 New standards, amendments and revised IFRS in Issue but not yet effective (Continued)

Effective for annual periods

New and revised 1FRSs beginning on or alter
Amendment to standard IFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based
Payment Transactions January 1, 2018

These amendments relete to the following areas:

+ The accounting for the effects of vesting conditions on cash-settled share-based
payment transactions,

s The classification of sharc-based payment {ransactions with net settlement features
for withholding tax obligations, and

s The accounting for a modification to the terms and conditions of a share-based
payment that changes the transaction from cash-settled to equity-settied.

The amendments apply prospectively to arnual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2018, with specific transitional requirements. The amendments may be applied
retrospectively only if it is possible to do so without using hindsight. Early application
is permitted. The Group is currently assessing the precise impact of this new standard.

Amendments to IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and 1AS 28 Invest- January 1, 2018
ments in Associates and Joint Ventures (2011) relating to the treatment of the sale or
contribution of assets from and investor to its associate or joint venture

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration Jenuary 1, 2018
The interpretation addresses foreign currency transactions or parts of transactions
where:
» There is consideration that is denominated or priced in a foreign currency,
» The entity recognizes a prepayment asset or a deferred income Hability in respect of
that consideration, in advance of the recognition of the related asset, expense or
income, and
= The prepayment asset or deferred income lisbility is non-monetary.

Management anticipates that these new standards, interpretations and amendments will be adopted in the Group’s
consolidated financial staterments as and when they are applicable and adoption of these new standards, interpretations
and amendments, except for IFRS 9, IFRS 15 and IFRS 16, may have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group in the period of initial application.

Management anticipates that IFRS 9 and [FRS 5 will be adopted in the Group's consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning January 1, 2018. As of December 31, 2017, the group is in the process of completing its
gvaluation of the impact of IFRS 9 on its financia! statements. The initial assessment made by the Group's independent
consultant revealed no material impact on the application of IFRS 15 on its financial statements and the Group's revenue
recognition policy. The application of IFRS 16 is effective January 1. 2019 and may have an impact on amounts reported
and disclosures made in the Group's consolidated financial statements in respect of its leases. However, it is not
practicable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimate of the effects of the application of IFRS 16 until the Group
pertorms a detailed review.
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TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2117

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The following is a summary of significant accounting policies applied by the Group:
4.1 Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise those of Takween Advanced Industries and of its subsidiaries (the
“Group™) as detailed in note 2.

Control is achieved when the Group:

» has power over the investes,
» is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and
+ has the ability to use its power to affect its retums,

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee it facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practieal ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company's voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

the size of the Company’s holding of voling rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders,
potential voting rights held by the Company, other vote holders or other parties,

rights arising from other contractual arrengements, and

any additional facts snd circumstances that indicate that the Company has, or does not have, the cumrent ability to direct
the relevant activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns ut previous shareholders’
meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains contro} over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company
ioses vontrol of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period
are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the Company
gains control until the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated statement of profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the
shareholders of the Group. Total comprehensive income of subsidiary is atiributed to the shareholders of the Company.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring its accounting policies into line
with the Group's sccounting policies.

All intragroup assets and lisbilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

4.1.1 Changes in the Group’s ownership interests In existing subsidinries
Changes in the Group's ownership interests in subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over the
subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions, The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is recognized
directly in equity and attributed to shareholders of the Group.

When the Group loses control of s subsidiary, 2 gain or less is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiery and any non-controlling interests, AHl smounts previcusly recognized
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified vonsofidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income or transferred to enother category of equity as specified/permitted by applicable IFRSs). The fair
value of any investmunt retained in the former subsidiary st the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under 1AS 39, when applivable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUD! JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.2 Business combination and goedwill

4.3

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, measured at scquisition date fair valve and the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree. For cach business combination, the acquirer measures the non-controlling
interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquirer’s identitisble net assets.
Acquisition costs incurred are expensed s incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at fair value at the acquisition date.
Cuntingent consideration classified as an asset or Hability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of 1AS
39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value with the changes in fair value
recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Goodwill represents the excess cost of investments over the fair value of the net assets acquired in a business
combination. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate consideration wansferred, the
CGiroup re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilitics assumed and
reviews (he procedures used to measure the amotnts to be recognized at the scquisition date. If the reassessment stil}
results in an excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain
is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination Is atlocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating
units, or groups of cash-generating units that are expected 1o benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group ere sssigned to those units or groups of units.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired, and
is carried at cost net of sccumulated impairment losses. impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the
recoverable amount of each CGU {or group of CGUs) to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of
the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impainnent loss is recognized, Impairment losses refating to goodwill
cennot be reversed in future periods. Gains or losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying smount of
goodwill refating to the entity soid. Negative goodwill represents the excess of the fair value of the net assets acquired
and the cost of investments in a business combination. Negative goodwill is recognized in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed off, the
goodwill associated with the operation disposed-off is included in the carrying amount of the cperation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed-off in this circumstance is measured
based on the refative values of the operation dispesed-off and the portion of the cash-generating unit retained. When
subsidiaries are sold, the difference between the selling price and the net assets plus cumulative translation differences
and goodwill is recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or toss and other comprehensive income,

Revenue recognition

Sales represent amounts received and receivable from third parties for goods supplied to the customers and for services
rendered.

Revenue is recognized to the extent of the following recognition requirements,

& [t is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group,

+ It can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made, and

« The cost incurred to date and expected future costs are identifisble and can be measured refiably.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or the contractually defined terms of payment. The
specific recognition criteria described below must alse be met before the revenue is recognized.
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
4.3 Revenue recognition (Continued)

4.3.1 Sale af Goods
Revenue from sales is recognized upon delivery or shipment of products by which the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have heen transferred to the buyer and the Group has no effective control or continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership over the goeds. Revenae from the sale of goods
is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of retumns and aliowances, trade discounts
and volume rebates, Other income is recognized when carned.

4.4 Financial assets

4.4.1 Recognition end derecognition
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognized on trade-date, the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash tlows from the financial
assets have expired or have heen transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

4.4.2 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receiv-
ables, and available for sale and held to maturity. The classification depends on the purpose for which the finencial assets
were acquired, Management determines the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(&) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are firanciel assets held for trading. A financial asset is clessified in
this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are also categorized s held
for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets if expected to be
settled within 12 months, otherwise they are classified a5 non-current. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value

{b) Loang and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months afier the end of the
reporting period, these are classified as non-current assets in the statement of financial position. Loans and receivables
are carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

{¢) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any
of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless the investment matures or management intends
to dispose of it within 12 months of the end of the reporting peried. Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair
value,

Changes in the fair value of inonetary and non-monetary securities classified as available for sale are recognized in other
comprehensive income.

{d) Held-to-maturity Investments
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that an entity
intends and is able to hold to maturity snd that do not meet the definition of loans and receivables and are not designated
on initial recognition as assets at fair value through profit or loss or as avatiable for sale. Held-to-maturity investments
are measured at amortized cost. If an entity sells a held-to-maturity investment other than in insignificant smounts or ay
& consequence of a noa-recurring, isolated event beyond its controf that could not be reasonably anticipated, afl of its
other held-to-maturity investments must be reclassified a5 available-for-sale for the current and next two financial re-

porting years.
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4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICEES (Continued)
4.4 Financial assets {Continued)

4.4.3 Fair vatue hierarchy of financial Instruments
The Group classifies the fair value of its financial instruments in the following hierarchy, based on the inputs used in
their valuation:

Level 1

The fair value of financial instrements quoted in active markets is based on their quoted closing price at the consolidated
statement of financial position date. Examples include exchange-traded commodity derivatives and other financial assets
such as investrents in equity and debt securities.

Level 2

The fair value of financia! instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques
using observable market data, Such valuation techniques include discounted cash flows, standard valuation models based
on market parameters for interest rates, yield curves or foreign exchange rates, dealer quotes for similar instruments and
use of comparable arm's length transactions.

Level 3
The fair vajue of financial instruments that are measured on the basis of entity specific valuations using inputs that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

4.4.4 Impalrment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of cach reporting period whether there is objective evidence that 4 financial asset or group
of financia! assets is impaired. A financial assct or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of impainnent as a result of one or more events that oceurred after the initial
recognition of the asset {a ‘loss event”) and that loss event {or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing signiticant financial difficulty, defauit or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization, and
where observable dats indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash tlows, such as changes
in arrears or economic conditions that comelate with defaults,

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivahles a provision for doubtful accounts is established when
there is a significant doubs that the Group will not be able to collect any of the amounts due according to the original
terms of the invoice. Such allowances for impairment are charged to the consolidaled statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and reported under “selling, marketing and distribution expenses”, When z trade receivable
is uncollectible, it is written-off against allowance for doubtful sccounts. Any subsequent recoveries of amounts previ-
ously written off are credited against other income in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehen-
sive income.

4.5 Financlal Uabilitles

4.5.1 Initiel Recognition
Financial lizbilities (including borrowings and trade and other payables} are classified as financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss er as Jeans and borrowings, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial
tiwbilities at initial recognition, Financiel Habilities are recognized initially at fair value and in the case of loans and
borrowings fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable transaction costs.

4.5.2 Messurement

4.5.2.1 Loans and Borrowings
Afier initia) recognition, interest bearing joans and barrowings (including trade and other payables) are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. Gains and fosses are recognized in the consolidated
statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through
the amortization process.

.23-
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.5 Financinl labillties (Continued)

4.5.2 Measurement (Continued)

4,5.2.2 Financial Habilltles at fair value through profit and loss (FYTPL)

4.53

454

4.6

4.7

4.8

Financial lisbilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognized in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid on the financial lability and
is included in the *other income / charges® line item

Derecogrition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When
an existing financial lability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terins
uf an existing liability are substantislly modified, such un exchange or modification is treated as » derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized
int the consolidated statement of profit or Joss and other comprehensive income.

Offsetting financizl Instruments

Financial assets and lisbilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legatly enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on o net basis
or realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously, The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future
events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptey
of the Group or the counterparty.

Effective interest rate method

The effective interest rate (EIR) method is 2 method of calculating the amortized cost of & debt instrument and of
atlocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, & shorfer period, to the net carrying amount on initizl recognition.

Regearch expenses

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Developiment expenditures on an individual project are recognized as an intan-
gible asset when the Group can demonstrate:

= the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale,
» itg intention to complete and its ability and intention to use or sell the asset,

» how the asset will generate future economic benefits,

« the availability of resources to complete the asset; and

= the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development,

Following initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the esset is carried at cost Jless accumulated
amortization and sccumulated impainnent losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete and
the asset is avaifable for use, It is amortized over the period of expected future benefit, Amortization is recorded in cost
of sales. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

Adminlstrative and selling, marketing and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses include indirect vosts not specifically pant of production costs as required under generally ac-
cepted accounting principles. Allocations between administrative expenses and cost of sales, when required, are made
on a consistent basis.

Selling, marketing and distribution expenses principally comprise of costs incurred in the distribution and sale of the
Group’s products. All other expenses are classified as administrative expenses,
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4,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4.9 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
deposits held with the bank, all of which have maturities of 90 days or less and are aveilable for use by the Group unless
otherwise stated. in the consolidated statement of financial position, bank overdraft is shown under line item borrowings.

4.10 Ioventories

4.11

4.1L1

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs incurred in bringing each product fo its present
location and conditien are accounted for, as follows:

» Raw materials, packing material and spare parts at weighted average cost basis; cost comprises all costs of purchases
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present locatien and condition.

» Finished goods and work-in-process at weighted average cost basis: these include cost of direct materials and labor
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs,

Net realizable value (NRV) is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Allowance is made for slow moving inventories.

Property, piant and equipment (PPE}

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment fosses.

Properties in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Such properties are
classified to the appropriate categories of property and equipment when completed and ready for intended use. Depre-
ciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use,

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are cartied ot cost, less any
recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for qualifying essets, borrowing costs capitalized in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use, Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Property and equipment (except frechold land and building under construction) are depreciated over its useful lives using
the straight line method.

The estimated useful life of the principal clesses of assets are as follows:

Percentage

Buildings end leasehold improvements 3~5
Plent, machinery and equipment 520
Vehicles 20-25
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 2035

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis,

Capitalization of costs under PPE
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:

+  its purchase price, including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates,

»  any costs directly aitributable to bringing the asset to the loeation and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by munagement, and

»  the initisl estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located,
the obligation incurred either when the item is sequired or as a consequence of having used the item during a
particular period for purposes other than to produce inventories during that period.
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4.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4,11 Property, plant and equipment (PPE) (Continued)

4.11.1

4.11.2

4.11.3

4.12

4.13

Capitatization of costs under PPE (Continued)

Capital work in progress represents the accumulated costs incurred by the group in relation 1o the construction of its
building and structures in the development stage. Cost incurred are initially charged to the capitel work in progress then
these costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment when the construction of these facilities are completed,
Finance costs on borrowings attributable to the construction of qualifying assets are capitalized during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use.

Derecagnition of praperty, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are ex-
pected fo arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined 8s the difference between the sales proceeds and the camrying amount of the
assel and is recognized in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Capital Spare Parts (CSP)
The Group classifies CSPs into critical spare parts (strategic spare pars) and genera} spare parts using the below
guidance:

« A critical spare part is one that is on “stand-by”, i.e. probable to be a major item / part critical to be kept on hand to
ensure uninterrupted operation of production. They would normally be used only due to a breskdown, and are not
generally expected to be used on a routine basis. Depreciation on critical spares commences immediately on the
date of purchase.

»  General spare parts are other major spare parts not considered critical and are bought in advance due to planned
replacement schedules (in line with prescribed maintenance program) to replace existing major spare parts with new
parts that are in operation. Such items are considered to be “available for use™ only at a future date, and hence
depreciation commences when it is installed as a replacement part. The depreciation period for such general capital
spares is over the lesser of its useful life, and the remaining expected useful life of the equipment to which it is
associated.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets anticipated to provide identifiable future benefits are classified as non-current assets. Intangible assets
comprise goodwill, software and system development costs and right of use of leased land. Enterprise resource planning
(ERP) system development costs represent costs incurred to implement new system and are amortized over 5-year period
from the date it is fully implemented. The right of use of leased Jand is amortized over the lease period using the straight-
line method. For goodwill, refer to business combination end goodwill policy (note 4.2).

Impairment of tangible end Intangible agsets

At the end of each teporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indieation that those assets have suffered an impairment loss, if any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of &n individuat asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
armount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of aliocation can
be identified, corporate assets are also aljocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which & ressonable and consistent alfocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposa! and vaiue in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
sssessiments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted.
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4.13

4.14

4.15

4.i6

4.16.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTEING FOLICIES (Continved)
impairment of tangible and Intangible assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an nsset (or cesh-generating unit) is estimated to be less than ils carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is rec-
opitized immediately in statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When an impairment Joss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or a cash-generating unit) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the CHITYing
amount that would have been determined had no impairment foss been recognized for the asset (or cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognized immediately in statement of profit or loss and other com-
prehensive income,

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Group hes a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probabie thet the Group will be required to settle the obligation, and & reliable estimate can be made of the amount of
the obligation. The amount recognized a5 a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the
obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimaled to settle the present obligation, its carrying
amount is the present value of those cash flows {when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably,

Dividends

Dividends are recognized as liability at the time of their approval in the annua! general assembly meeting. Interim divi-
dends are recorded as and when approved by the board of directors.

Forelgn currency translation

Presentation currency

The aceompanying consolidated financial statements are presented in Saudi Riyals which is the functional currency and
presentation currency of the parent company. ltems included in the financial statements of each of the group entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the group entity operates (the functional

* currency).

4.16.2 Transsction and balances

Transactions denominated in currencies other than the eatity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognized
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the end of each reporting period are translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-menetary items
carried a1 fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise except for exchange differences on monetary items receivable
from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefare forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognized initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to conselidated statement of profit or loss on repayment of the manetary items,
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4.17

4.18

4.18.1

4.18.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Transaction and balances {Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a {oreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that inchedes a foreign operation), ali of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Group are reclassified to statement of profit or loss.
1n addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in the
Group losing control over the subsidiary, the proportionate shere of aecumulated exchange differences is re-attributed
to non-controlling interests and are not recognized in the statement of profit or loss, For afl other partial disposals (i.e.
partial disposals of associates or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing significant influence or joint
control), the proportionate share of the sccumutated exchange differences is reclassified to statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income,

Segmental reporting

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it may eam revenues
and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that refate to transactions with any of the Group's other
components. All operating segments’ operating results are reviewed regularly by the Group's managing director and
CEO to make decisions sbout resources to be allocated to the segment and to assess its performance, and for which
discrete financial information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the managing director and CEQ include items directly attributable to a segment as
wel] as those that can be aliocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items compose mainly corporate expenses and
related assets/liabilities (primarily the Company's headguarters). Head office expenses, research and development costs
and related assets/liabilitics, some goodwill and intangible assets and income tax assets and Habilities.

Employee benefits

Shart term obligation

Liabilities for wages and salaries, inciuding non-monetary benefits and accumulsting sick leave that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 maonths after the end of the period in which the empioyees render the related service are recog-
nized in respect of employees® services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected
10 be paid when the lisbilities are sentfed. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit obligations within
accruals ir the consolidated statement of financial position.

Employees’ end-of-service benefits {EOSB)

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The liability recognized in consolidated statement of financial position in respect of employee benefits is the present
vaiue of defined benefits obligation at the end of reporting period.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid,
gnd that have terms approximating to the terms of the related obligation.

Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows:

Service cost
Service costs includes current service cost and past service cost are recognized immediately in consolidated statement
of profit or loss,

Chanpes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are rec-
ognized immediately in consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive ncome as past service costs.

Interest cost
Interest cost is calculated by applying the discouns rate to at the beginning of the period to the net defined benetit liability,
This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits { Continued)

Employees’ end-of-service benefits (EOSH) (Continued)

Re-measurement gains or losses

Re-measurement gaing or losses arising from experience adjustiments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recog-
nized in the period in which they oceur, directly in other comprehensive income

Zakat and income tax

The Group is subject to the reguiations of the General Authority of Zakat and Income Tax ("GAZT") in the kingdom of
Saudi Arabia. Moreover, the subsidiaries are subject to the relevant laws relating to income tax in the countries where
they conduct their activities, Zakat is calculated on aecrual besis. Zaket is calculated on the higher of zakat base or ad-
justed net income. Any difference in the estimate is recorded when the final assessment is spproved, at which time the
provision is cleared.

Peferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consol-
idated financial statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, Deferred tax liabil-
ities are generally recognized for alf taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are gencrally recognized for all
deductible termporary differences to the extent that it is probabte that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilized, Deferred tax liabilities and essets are measured at the fax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates {and tax faws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially a}{ the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating lesses. The Group does not have any finances leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense on & straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the |leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognized as a lisbility,
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognized s a reduction of rental expense on a steaight-line basis, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattem in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumned.

Statutory reserve

In secordance with regulations for companies in Saudi Arabia and the by-laws of the Company, the Group has established
a statulory reserve by the appropriation of 10% of net income until the reserve equals 30% of the share capital. This
reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

+ the profit attributable to shareholders of the Group, excluding any costs of servicing equity other than ordinary
shares, and

* by the weighted average nuinber of ardinary shares owtstanding during the financial period.
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4.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued}

Earnings per share {Continued)

Diluted earnings per share
Diluted carnings per share adjusts the figurcs used in the determination of basic carnings per share to take into account:

» theafter income tex effect of interest and other financing costs associated with diltutive potential ordinary shares, and
» the weighted average number of additional ordinary shares that would have been outstanding assuming the conver-
sion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing cost directly attributable to the construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
teke & substantial period of time to get ready for their intended uge o sale, are added to cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Al other borrowing cost are recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

‘The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted secounting principles requires
the use of estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and ex-
penses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on management's best knowledge of current events
and actions, actual results may differ from those estimates. Revisions to sccounting estimates are recognized in the period
in which the estimates are revised and in Future periods affected.

Impairment of trade recelvables

An allowance for impainment of trade and other receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group
will not be able to collect all amounts due sccording to the original terms of the agreement. Significant financial difficul-
ties of the counter party, probability that the counter party will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and defauit
or delinquency in payments are considered indicators of objective evidence that the recelvable is impaired. For significant
individua) amounts, assessment is made on an individual basis. Amounts, which ere not significant, but are overdue, are
assessed collectively and an allowance is recognized considering the Jength of time considering past recovery rates,

Alfowance for slow maving inventory items

‘The management makes an allowance for slow moving and obsolete inventory items. Estimates of net realizable value of
inventories are based on the most reliable evidence at the time the estimates are made, These estimates take into consid-
eration, fluctuations of price or cost direcily related to events oceurring subsequent to the statement of financial pesition
date to the extent that such events confirm conditions existing at the end of year,

Provisions and contingencies

A provision for incurred liabilities is recognized when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligations as a result
of past events and it is more likely than not that an outflow of resource will be required to settie the obligation and the
amount has been reliably estimated,

All possible obligations arising from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the cecurrence or nen-oc-
currence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly with in the control of the Group; or ali present obligations
arising from past events but not recognized because: {i) it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying eco-
nomic benefits will be required to settie the obligation, or (ii) the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with
sufficient reliability; assessed at each statement of financial position date and disclosed in the Group's financial statements
under contingent liabilities.

230
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
{Continued)

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The management determines the estimated useful fives of property, plant and equipment for calculating depreciation,
This estimate is determined after considering expected usage of the assets and physical wear and tear. Management re-
views the residual value and useful lives annually and change in depreciation charges, if any, are adjusted in current and
future periods.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Non-current assets are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or changes in circumstsnces indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss, if any, is recognized for the mount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
vosts 1o sell and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which
there are separately identifiable cash flows, Non-current assets other than intangible assets and that suffered impainment
are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at esch reporting date. Where an impairment oss subsequently reverses,
the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is Increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but
the increased carrying amount should not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, had no impair-
ment loss been recognized for the assets or cash-generating unit in prior years, A reversal of an impairment foss is recog-
nized as income immediately in the consolidated statement of profit or less. Impairment losses recognized on imangible
assets and available for sale securities are not reversible.

Estimation of defined benefit obligation

The cost of defined benefit obligation and the present value of the obligation are determined using actuarial valuations.
An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate and future salary increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation,
the underlying assumptions and ils long-term nature, 2 defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
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TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY}

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

§. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Giroup's buildings and production facilitates in Al- Hasse are constructed on a parcel of fand owned by an affiliate
and the building of Ayoun plant is constructed on land leased from Saudi Industrial Property Authority (MODON) for a
period of 20 years commencing from Muharrat 27, 1436H (November 24, 2014).

SAAF's buildings and production facilitates are constructed on & parcel of fand in Al Hassa owned by an affiliate and a
piece of jand leased from Saudi Arabian Oil Company in the Western Province of Saudi Arabia.

Under the terms of a land lease agreement with Jeddah Industrial City ("JIC"), Saudi Packaging has various renewable
aperating leases upon which its production facilities are located. Annual leese snd service charge payments to JIC are
nominal.

One of the Al-Sharg's warehouses is located on two parcels of land which are leased by Saudi Packaging a related party,
lacated at Riyadh Industrig} City. During the year the szid warehouses were transferred back to Saudi Packaging.

Buitdings and plant facilities of the Al-Sharg Company are constructed on land lessed under the terms of two land fease
agreements with the Ssudi Organization for Industrial Estates and Technology Zones {"SFIT"}, which are 25-year renew-
able operating leases commencing from Muharram 5, [425H (February 25, 2004), Annual lease and service charge pay-
ments to SFIT are nominal.

During 2016, the Group had changed the classification of its strategic spares amounting to SR 27.34 million, which were
previously classified under non-resalsble inventory, to property, plant and equipment effectively January 1, 2016. This
resulted in an increase in depreciation charge of SR 5.5 million for 2016.

Saudi Packaging has prepaid operating lease payments which principally represent the amount paid by the subsidiary to
gequire the rights to lease land from a government agency tor its ongoing expansion projects and is amortized over the
period of 25 years. Annual lease and service charge payments to the government sgency are nominal. As at December
31, 2017, the balance amounts to SR 7.1 miltion (2016: SR 7.67 million) is included under intangible asscts (note 7).

At December 31, 2017, certain property, plant and equipment were pledged as collateral to certain credit facilities, Refer
note 15.

Capital work-in-progress at December 31, 2017 is principally related to various additions to the production facilities and
other improvements which were under progress at the year end.

Depreciation for the year has been allocated under the following:

December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

Note SR 000 SR 008

Cost of revenue 20 119,450 97,721
Administrative expenses 21 2,479 %086
Selling, marketing and distribution expenses 22 1,519 1,300
123,039 101,107




TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUD] JOINT STGCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continved)
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1.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost
Less: aceumulated minortization

Net book value

Reconciliation of net boek value

Costz

January 1

Addition

Acquired through business combination

Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 6)
Write off

December 31

Amortization:

January |

Charge for the year

“Transfer from property, plant and equipment (note 6)
Write off

December 31

Net hook vaijue

GOODWILL

December 31, December 31, Janeary 1,
2017 2016 2016
SR ‘000 SR ‘000 SR 000
24,714 22,598 29,889
11,809 8,766 5,720
12,965 13,832 14,169
December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

SR ‘04 SR 000

22,598 249,889

1,617 -

559 2,706

- (9,997)

24,114 22,598

8,766 5,720

2,875 3

168 -

- (126)

11,809 8,766

12,965 13,832

The Company entered into an agreement with Savola Group on December 30, 2014, for the acquisition of Saudi Plastic
Packaging Systems (“Saudi Packaging™ (formerly Savola Packaging Systems Company Limited), a wholly owned
subsidiary of Savola Group, along with two wholly owned subsidiaries of Saudi Packaging (Al-Sharg Company for Plastic
Industries Limited (*Al-Sharq™ and New Marina for Plastic Industries Company (*New Marina”) for a total purchase price
of SR 910 million. As a result of this business acquisition and contro! acquired through sale agreement, the Company
consolidated newly acquired subsidiaries with effect from January 1, 2015. In 2015, Council of Competition Protection
approved the proposed acquisition of Saudi Packaging and consequently, the consideration of SR 910 million was paid in
full. A geodwill of SR 323.58 million was recognized on the acquisition that represented the excess consideration paid over
the net book value of net essets required, after carrying out valuation of the assets and liabilities as per the reyuirements.

The fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed under business combination, pursuant to final purchase price

allocation are as follows:

The goodwill arising on acquisitions is follows:

Fair value of considerzation paid
Lesy: fair value of identifiable net assets acquired

Goodwill

-35.

December 31, December 31, January 1,
07 2016 2016

SR ‘008 SR ‘000 SR ‘000
918,060 910,000 910,000
586,418 586,418 586418
323,582 323,582 323,582
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(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continucd)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

8.

9.

9.1

GOODWILL (Continued)

Goodwill is subject to anrual impairment testing. For the purpose of testing goodwill impairment, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies associated with the scquisition. The
aggregation of assets for identifying the cash generated unil was changed in 2017 following the restructuring of the Group
operations as explained in note 2. The recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is its value in use.

In arriving to the value in use, management has based its cash flow forecast covering a five-year period, Management used
a cumulative average growth rate (CAGR) in revence of 8.5% over a period of five years end a discount rate of 11% as
relevant to each cash generating unit based on the weighted average cost of capital in addition to other assumptions associated
with selling prices and raw material cost.

The resuit of the goodwill impairment test performed by the group’s management revealed no indication of goodwill
jmpairment. The valuation analysis as prepared by management was subject to a review by third party consultant who stated
in his review report that the valuation methodology adopted by management to estimate the value in use is considered to be
adequate. Management is confident of its ability to meet its future business plan and believes thal the carrying value of its
assets including its goodwill will not exceed its recoverable amount.

INVENTORIES
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2017 2016 2016
Note SR. ‘000 SR ‘000 SR ‘000
Finished goods 94,753 118,854 138,766
Raw and packaging materials and work in progress 207,674 182,804 247,864
Spare parts 38,205 35,003 76,005
340,632 340,661 462,635
Allowance for inventories o1 (25,110 {B.349) (5,930
315,522 332,312 456,705
Movement in the allowance for inventories:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
SR ‘000 SR ‘000
Opening balance 8,349 5,930
Aliowance / write down for the year 16,740 4,204
Reversal of allowance for the year - (1.154)
Foreign currency translation 21 (631
Closing balance 25,116 8,349

-3



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

10. TRADE RECEIVABLES

10.1

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2017 6 2016
Naote SR 000 SR 000 SR ‘000
Trade receivables 310,334 356,488 423,893
Trade receivables — related parties 24 21,202 11,855 21,958
Due from a related party 24 - B5 1.673
10.2 331,536 368,428 447524
Provision for doubtful debts 16,1 (38,086) {24,593) (34,792)
293,450 343,835 412,732

The movement in the proviston for doubtful debts is as follows:
December 31, December 31,
017 2016
SR 000 SR 000
Opening balance 24,593 34,192
Addition for the year 13,456 458
Transter on acquisition - -
Reversal of provision - {9,328)
Foreign currency translation 37 (1,329)
Fair valuation allocation on business combination - -
Closing balance 38,086 24,593

10.2 The ageing of trade receivables and refated allowance of impaired receivables at the reporting date are as follows:

il

December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 January 1, 2016

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment Gross Impairment

Si ‘660 SR ‘000 SR ‘000 SR 000 SR ‘000 SR 000

Not past due 208,114 . 213,010 - 777,691 -
Past due 1-90 days 68,662 . 90,235 - 95,010 -
Past due 91-180 days 19,975 - 21,597 - 14,073 -
Above 180 days 37,785 38,086 43,586 24,593 60,750 34,792
331,536 38,086 368,428 24,593 447,524 34,792

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade
receivable from the date credit was initially granted up to the end of the reporting period. The Group does nat hold any
collateral over impaired irade receivables. Allowance for impairment of trade receivables is calculated based on the ageing

profile and history.

The average credit period on sales is 90 days { December 31, 2016: 90 days)

PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Advences to suppliers

Rebate receivables

Prepaid expenses

Margin egainst bank guarantees and letters of credit
Other receivables

=37

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2017 016 20106

SR ‘000 SR 000 SR 000
1,641 18,298 18,082

34,747 857 49422

7,950 11,714 22817

3,499 4427 19,713

4,622 4,821 4,857

58,459 FiNEX) 114,891
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

12. HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS

December 31, December January 1,

2017 31,2016 016

SR ‘000 SR 060 SR 000

Investments in treasury bills 6,958 - -

Investment in treasury bilis refates to the purchase of Egyptinn treasury bitls as of December 2017, by New Marina for Plastic
[ndustries Company, a subsidiary, with a par value amounting to EGP 36 million and an annuai interest rate of 18.5% and

matures on June 26, 2018.

13. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the followings:

Pecember 31, Pecember 31, January 1,
2017 2016 20t6
SR ‘000 SR *000 SR 000
Cash in hand 276 328 366
Cash at bank 41,367 42,941 106,428
41,583 43,265 106,794
14. EQUITY
14.1 Share capital
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2017 2016 2016
SR 000 SR 000 SR '000
Authorized share capital
95 million shares, {35 million shares) of SR 10 each 950000 950,000 350,000
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up share capltal
95 miltion shave, {35 million shares) of SR 10 each 950,000 950,000 350,000
December 31, December 31, January I,
2017 016 2016
Reconclliation of number of shares outstanding (in “000"}
Opening balance 95,000 35,000 35000
Shares issued . 60,000 -
Closing balance 95,000 95,000 35,000

14.2 Statutory reserves

In accordance with Company's By-Laws, the Company is required to transfer 10% of net income each year to a statutory
reserve until such reserve equals 30% of its share capital. This reserve is not available for distribution to sharcholders.

i4.3 Other reserves

December 31, December 31, January 01,

2617 2016 2016

. SRIG00. SR '000 SR 000

Exchange ditferences on transiation of foreign operation (50,821) {51.987) {6,439}
Remessurements of employee benefits {2,594} 3,508 -
(53,415) (48,479) {6,439

=38«
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

15, BORROWINGS

a) Medium and long term foans

December 31, December 31, January |,

2017 2016 2016

SR “000 SR “000 SR “000

Commercial loan 348,999 410,539 BE6,175
Saudi Industrial Development Fund (“S1DF"} loans 104,507 120,267 129,347
453,506 530,806 1,015,522

Less: current portion 96,684 §3.502 217,617
356,822 447304 797,905

Commereial loan — The Group entered into Murabaha Facilities Agreement of SR 910 million with the Arab National Bank
(“the lead bank™), on behalf of Murabaha Facilities Participants, for financing the acquisition of Saudi Plastic Packaging Sys-
tems (*Saudi Packaging™) {formerly Savola Packaging Systems Company Limited) along with its two subsidiaries i.e, Al-Sherq
Company for Plastic Industries Limited and New Marina for Plastic Industries Company (S.A.E.). The facility is secured by
irrevocable &nd unconditional assignment of all rights, titles and interests to the sale contract entered into with the Al Othman
Agricultural Product and Production Company (NADA), a related party, revenue accounts of the Company and two of its
subsidiaries i.e. Advanced Fabrics Factory Company (SAAF) and Ultra Pak Manufacturing Company (LUltrapak) and a corpo-
rate guarantee from Al-Othman Holding Company, an affiliate,

During 2016, a repayment of SR 490 million was made in respeet of this loan i.e. SR 90 million pertaining to scheduled loan
instaliment and early repayment of SR 400 miflion. There was no change in the term of the loan, however repayment has been
rescheduled accordingly. The Group is in breach of centain covenants of leng term loan which is measured haif yearly i.e. June
and December every year. However, management has taken necessary remedial action including obtaining waiver from the
tead bank as on December 31, 2016 and June 30, 2017 and is in the process of obtaining & waiver as of December 31.2017.
Accordingly, this loan continues 1o be classified as current and non-current based on the terms of contract of loan / repayment
schedule.

SIDF loans - The Group entered into various loan agreements with SIDF to finance the construction of the plant facilities of
the Group. The loans bear no periodic financing charges. The loans are secured by martgage on the property, plant and equip-
ment of the Group companies, two parcels of land owned by an affiliate and corporate guarantees from the Company. The loan
appraisal fees are deferred and are being amortized over the term of the loans.

In July 2009, SIDF sanetioned a loan to Uttrapak for SR 12.85 million to finance the modernization and expansion of production
facilities. The loan is repayable in twelve unequal semi-annual instaliments commencing Rabi' 1 1, 1431 {Janusry 31, 2010}
In 2042, Ultrapak entered into a further loan agreement with S1DF to finance expansion of production facilities for an additional
amount of SR 12,7 million due in 13 unequal semi-annual instaliments, commencing Safar 15, 1435 (December 18, 2013).
Dauring 2014, these loans have been consolidated into one facility of SR 25.5 million with an additional drawdown of SR 1.6
million which is payable in 11 unequal semiannual instaliments commencing from 15 Safar, 1436 {December 7, 2014) and
final payment is due on Safar 15, 1441 (October 14, 2019). During the year, the foan was transferred to Saudi Packing as a
part restructuring of the Group operations s explained in note 2. Subsequent to year end dated February 26, 2018, anagreement
was signed with SIDF reflecting the transfer of the loan.

In September 2013, SAAF entered into a loan agreement with SIDF to finance the construction of its new production facilities
for an amount of SR 125.7 mitlion. Repayment of the loan is in 14 unequal semi-sanual instaliments commencing from Shaw-
wal 15, 1436H (July 31, 2015}, In 2015, an amount of SR 12.5 miflion and in 2014 5R 113.2 miilion was drawn down by the
SAAF. The Group is non-compliant with certain covenants of these loan, However, the Group has received the waiver against
the application for waiver of nen-vompliance of financial covenants for the year ended Decembur 3 1, 2016, and is in the process
of obtining wavier for 2017, Accordingly, management has disclosed the loan as current portion and non-current portion based
on terms of contract of loan / repayment schedule.

b) Short term loans
The Group has credit facilities sgraements with Jocal commercial banks comprising of overdrafts, short term {oans, letters af
credit and guarantee ete. amounting to SR 973 million. Borrowings under the facilities bear financing charges at the prevailing
market rates and are secured by demand order note, promissory notes in addition to corporate guarantees from Al-Othman
Holding Company, an affiliate, to one local bank.

.15,



TAKWEEN ADYANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

The Group carried out actuarial valuations to account for its obligations under defined benefit plan. As per valuation results,
the Group has made adjustment of SR 6.63 and SR 1.30 as at Janvary 1, 2016 and December 31. 2016 respectively, represent-

ing additional liability and respective adjustment was made in opening retained earnings (Ret: note 30).

Movement in employees end of service benefits during the year is as follows:

December 31,  December 31,

07 2016

SR ‘000 SR 000

Opening balance as at January 1 - as per SOCPA 16,867 40,925

impact of transition {Note 30.4) 1,298 6,634

Opening balance as at January { —as per IFRS 38,165 47550

Expense charge for the year 7541 6,691

Re-measurement loss (gain) 6,102 {3.508)

Employee benefits paid £11,690} (12,577

Closing balance 40,518 38,165
Charge to consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year

December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

SR ‘000 SR ‘000

Current service cost 6,704 5038

Interest cost 1,237 1,653

Cost recognized in profit and loss 7,941 6.691

Principal actuarial sssumptions

December 31,  December 31,

2047 2016

Discount factor used 3.00% 3.1re

Salary increase rate 4,00% 2.00%

Rate of employees tumover Heavy Heavy

Sensitivity analysis on present value of defined benefit obligations plan are as below:

December 31, 2087 December 31, 2016
Percentage Amount Percentage Amount
SR ‘000 SR *000
Discount rate
Increase +0.5% 37,844 +3.5% 36,550
Decrease - 0.5% 41,350 -0.5% 39,949
Expected rate of salary
Increase H.5% 41,412 +0.5% 39,676
Decrease -0.5% 317,806 -0.5% 36,786



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
{A SAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

17. TRADE PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

December 31, December 31, Junuary 1,

2017 2016 2016

SR ‘000 SR ‘000 SR ‘000

Trade payables 133,279 174,689 253,495
Due to related parties (note 24} 1,011 5.700 5093
Acerued expenses 101,403 58,9% 71,352
Provision for Zakat (note 18.3) 10,373 8,700 4,667
Provision for income tax (note 18.4) t78 1.758 -
246,244 249,841 344,607

18. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX

i8.1 Zakat status
2Zakat returns for the Group companies have been filed independently and paid for all years threugh 2010 and the zakat cer-
tificates have been received till 2016. Zakat return for the Company and its subsidiaries has been filed on a consolidated basis
by the Group for 2011 and onwards and zakat certificates have been received. New Marina is registered in Arab Republic of
Egypt and pays income tax according to its focal laws and regulations.

The Company and its subsidiaries' assessments have been agreed up to different years. The Company and its subsidiaries’
have recelved additional assessments for certain years and have filed objections against these assessments. Total additional
zakat against for which objection have been filed amount to SR 9.4 million, Management is confident of favorable outcome
against these assessments, Further, the Group's management is of the view that any zakat charge in respect of newly acquired
companies relating to period before scquisition date will be paid by the previous owners. Accordingly, provision for this zakat
has not been recognized in these consolidated financial staterments.

18.2 Principal elements of zakat base:

December 31, December 31,

2017 2016

SR ‘000 SR ‘000

Non-current assets 1,462,872 1,545,030

Non-current liabilities 397,340 485469

Spare parts 38,205 39,003

Opening shareholders” equity 911,959 432 474

Net loss before zakat and income tax {162,667} {60.089)
Some of these amounts have been adjusted in arriving at the zakat charge for the year.

18.3 Zakat provision:

December 31, December 31,

W07 2016

SR ‘08D SR 000

January 1 8,700 14.667

Provision (reversal) for the year 5391 (1421

Peyments during the year (3,718) {4,546)

December 31 10,373 8,700

18.4 Provision for Income tax
December 31, December 31,

017 e

SR ‘000 SR 0060

January 1 1,158 -
Provision for the year 177 1425
Incomne tax paid during the year {1,817} -
Foreign currency translation 60 (1,667
December 31 178 1,758

~4-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

18. ZAKAT AND INCOME TAX {Continued)

18.5 Current year's rzekat and Income (ax expense

December 31, December 31,

2617 2616

Note SR ‘600 SR 000

Zakat expense {reversal) 183 5,391 (1421}
Income tax expense 184 §77 3425
5,568 2,004

19. SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The accounting policies used by the Group in reporting segments internaily are the same as those contained in note 4

of these consolidated financial statements.

Segment analysis of the Group's operations for the year consist of the following:

For year ended For year ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016
Disposable Disposable
polystyrene polystyrene
cups, lids cups, lids
and other and other
plastic related  Non-woven plestic related  Non-woven
products fabrics Totat products fabrics Total
SR 000 SR ‘080 SR ‘000 SR ‘000 SR 000 SR 000
Revepue 1,016,745 231,669 1,248,414 1,191,568 224,028 1,415,596
Cost of revenue 941,096 243,812 1,189,908 998,685 215,335 1,214,020
Loss for the year 102,625 65,610 168,235 41,663 20,430 62,093
The detail of utilization of the Group sssets by the segments as well as related liabilitics is as follows:
Disposable polysty-
rene
cups, Hds
and other plastic re-
December 31, 2017 lated products Non-woven fabrics Total
SR 000 SR ‘000 SR ‘400
Non-current assets 1,062,846 400,026 1,462,872
Total assets 1,615,032 563,812 2,178,844
Total liabilities 1,010,774 428,282 1,439,056
December 31, 2016
Non-current assets 1,116,610 428,420 1,545,030
Total assets 1,743,559 398,664 2342233
Total linbilities 1.031,740 397,524 1,429,264
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

19

20,

SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Continued)
Geographlcal segment

A geographical segment is a Group of assets, operations or entities engaged in revenue producing activities within a
particular economic environment that are subject to risks and retums different from those operating in other geonomic
environments. The Group's operation is conducted mainly in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and the Arab Republic of
Egypt. The selected financial information covering the revenue as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, categorized by these

peographic segments is as follows:

For the year ended For the year ended
December 31, 2017 December 31, 2016 )
Kingdom of Arsb Arab
Seudi Arabla  Republic of Kingdom of  Republic of
Egypt Total  Saudi Arabia Egypt Total
SR 000 SR 060 SR 000 SR ‘000 SR 000 SR 000
Revenue 1,172,595 15,819 1,248,414 1,318,658 96,938 1,415,596
Cost of revenue 1,126,975 62,533 1,189,008 1,140,166 73,854 1,214,020
Loss for the year 167,054 1,181 168,215 52,337 9,756 62,093
The detail of utilization of the Group assets by the segments as well as refated liabilities is as follows;
Kingdom of Saudi Arab Republic of
December 38, 2017 Arabia Egypt Total
SR *080 SR 000 SR ‘000
Non-current assets 1,458,306 11,566 1,462,872
Totail assets 107,679 71,165 2,178,844
Total liabilities 1,400,937 38,119 1,439,056
December 31, 2016
Non-current assets 1,532,068 12,962 1,545,030
Total assets 2,279,562 62,661 2342223
Tota! linhilities 1,399,696 29,568 1.429.264
COST OF REVENUE
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
SR ‘000 SR 000
Material cost 878,350 885,980
Depreciation (note 6) 119,450 97,721
Employee costs 96,419 102,609
Electricity and water 55,893 61,922
Repair and maintenance 25,082 31959
Others 14,714 33,829
1,189,948 1,214.020




TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

21. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs

Coinmugnication and other office expenses
Amontization of intangible assets (note 7)
Depreciation (note 6)

Legal and professional fee

Intangible assets written off

Traveling and conveyance

Others

22, SELLING, MARKETING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Local transportation
Employee costs

Pravision for doubtful debts
Depreciation {note 6)

Rent

Others

23. OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)

Reversal of excess provision for bad debts

Foreipn exchange gain (loss}

Sale of scrap
Others

ER

December 31, December 31,
2017 Jol6

SR ‘000 SR 000
49,163 47421

13,789 13,787

2,875 3,172

2,470 2,086

9,111 4,069

- 9,871

3,349 4,351

7,499 5,755

88,256 90,512
December 31, December 31,
017 2016

SR ‘000 SR ‘000
16,862 42,260
21,643 18,561

13,456 458

1119 1,360

8,774 6,384
 50m 4,900
86,933 73,863
December 31, December 3,
2017 2016

SR ‘000 SR 0G0

- 9,328

459 {23.830)

4,738 |.669

1,791 1103

6,988 {11,730}




TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

24, RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

Balznces and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of the Company, have
been efiminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Details of transactions between the Group and other
related parties are disclosed below.

ompan Relationshi

Al Othiman Group of companies Affiliates

The significant transactions with related parties during the year are as follows:
December 31, December 31,
Nature of trangaction 2017 2016
SR *000 SR 000
Purchase of air tickets 5382 5512
IT services 6,034 7.809
Purchase of materials 468 312
Expenses incurred on behalf of affilistes 36 457
Purchase of / advance for property, plant and equipment kRixd. 14,784
Sales during the year 72,329 72,213
Accommodation, food and other miscellancous expenses 5,963 4,380

A) Balances receivable from related parties are as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
SR ‘800 SR '000
Al Othman Agriculture Production and Processing Company ("NADA™) 21,202 11,855
Systems of Strategic Business Solutions Company {“55BS™) - 85
21,202 11,940
B) Balances payeble to related parties are as follows:

December 31 December 31
M7 20i6
SR 000 SR 000
Al Hessa Development Company {former related party) - 4,300
Mohamed ALOthman agency for travel end tourism (Al-Othman Travel} 366 530
Systerns of Strategic Business Solutions Company (“SSBS™) 629 329
Others 16 541
1,011 5,700




TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

25, REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

Pecember 31 December 31

2017 2016

SR ‘000 SR ‘000

Remuneration 7232 8152
House rent allowance 1,481 1.574
Medical aliowance 107 116
Litilities aliowance 100 17t
Bonus 1,785 1,768
Employee benefits 468 394
Others 188 62
11,361 12,237

26. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has entered into operating lease agreement for land/building/emplayee accommodation fora time period between
one year to thirty years. The Group holds no right to scquire this property at the end of the contract,

December 31, December 31, January 1,
2017 2016 2016
SR ‘400 SR 000 SR ‘000
Expenses recognized against lensing
Arrangements 12,5166 10,236 7,545
Commitments for minimum lease payments under non-cancelable operating leases are as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
SR *000 SR 000
Not later than 1 year 1,756 3,062
L.ater than 1 year and not later than 5 yedrs iK,107 11,749
Later than 5 years 18,173 15,091
31,036 29,902
27. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
December 31, December 31, January I,
017 2086 2016
SR ‘000 SR ‘000 SR 000
Letters of credit 10,445 15,650 113,148
Letter of guarantees and others 4,442 4,867 46,483
Capital commitments against purchase of
property, plant and equipment 11,968 31,208 22,372



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

28. LOSS PER SHARE

Basic loss per share is caleulated by dividing the loss atributable to ordinary sharchelders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. With regard to diluted loss per share, the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue is adjusted to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Loss per share are represented as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2017 206
Basit’ Dilutive loss per share (SR} (LT (1.27)
Loss for the year (SR *000} {168,235) (62,093
Weighted avernge number of outstanding shares 95,000,000 49,052,740
29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to the following financiaf risks from its use of the financial instrumemts:
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk

- Market risk {including interest rate risk and Foreign currency exchange risk)
- Capital management risk

The Group's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to mini-
mize potential adverse cffects on the Group's financial performance.

29.1 Financial Instruments by category

December 31, December 31, Januery I,
2017 2016 2016
SR ‘000 SR ‘000 SR 080

Finencial assets at amortized cost
Trade receivables 30,334 356,488 423,893
Trade receivables — related patties 21,202 11,855 21,958
Other receivables 42,868 47,765 73,992
Held to maturity investment 6,958 - -
Due from related party - 35 1,673
Cash and bank balznces 41,583 43,269 106,794
Total financlal assets 422,945 459,462 628310

The Group has no financial assets at fair value through profit and less.

4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 131, 2017

29,
28,1

202

29.2.1

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial instruments by category {Continued)

Finasncial tiabilities at amortized cost:

December 31, December 31, Janusry 1,

2017 2016 016

SR ‘000 SR 000 SR 000

Trade payables and ather liabilities 234,682 233,683 324847
Due to related parties 1,011 5,700 5,093
Short term loans 698,788 610452 811,686
Medium and long term loans 453,506 530,806 1,015,522
Total financial Habilities 1,387,987 1,380,641 2,157,148

The Group have no financial liability at fair value through profit and loss,

Financlai instruments and refated disclosures

The Group reviews and agrees policies for managing each of the risks and these policies are suminarized below:

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the teporting date if counter panties failed completely
to perform as contracted. The Group has policies in place to minimize its expesure to credit risk. The maximum exposure

to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:

December 31, December 31, January I,

2017 2016 2016

SR ‘000 SR ‘000 SR ‘000

Trade receivables 310,334 356,488 423,893
Trade receivables - related parties 21,202 11,855 21958
Due from refated parties - 85 1,673
Other receivables 42,868 47,765 73,992
Held to maturity investments 6,958 . -
Cash at bank 41,307 41,941 106,428
422,669 459,134 627,944

The Group seeks to manage its credit risk with respect to banks by only dealing with reputable banks with sound credit
rating. With respect to credit risk arising from the financial assets of the Group, including receivables from employees and
bank halances, the Group's exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amount of these assets in the consolidated statement of financial position, The group manages eredit isk
with respect to its receivables from customers by monitoring it in accordance with the established policies and procedures

which includes establishment of credit Jimits and regular monitoring of the ageing of trade receivables.

The Group’s management determines the credit risk by regularly monitoring the creditworthiness rating its of existing
customers and through a monthly review of the trade receivables' ageing enalysis, In monitoring the customers' credit risk,
customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics. Customers that are graded as "high risk” are placed on o
separate list, and future credit sales are made only with approval of key directors, otherwise payment in advance is required.
The group assess the recoverable amaunt of iis receivables to ensure adequate allowance for impainnent is made,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

29.2 Financial instruments and related disclosures {Continued)

28.2.1

29.2.2

Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables are classified as past due if they are outstanding for more than 30-120 days based on respective cus-
tomer eredit period. For ageing of receivables refer note 10.2. Analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,
047 2016 2016
SR ‘080 SR 000 SR 000
Not past due 205,114 213,010 277,691
Past due 126,422 155418 169,833
Less: Provision for deubtful debts {38,086) {24,593} {34,792)
88,336 130,825 135,041
293,450 343,835 412,732

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficubty in ralsing funds to meet commitments assoviated with
financial liabilities. Liguidity risk may resuft from the inability to sell a financial asset quickly at an amount close to its fair
value,

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on undiscounted contractual cash
payments:

Financial 1iabilitles
On demand or

Carrying less than one One year to
2017 amount year five years
SR ‘040 SR ‘000 SR ‘600
Trade payable and other liabilities 234,682 234,682 -
Due to related parties 1,011 1,011 -
Short term loans 698,788 698,788 -
Medium and long term loan 453,506 96,684 356,822
1,387,987 1,031,168 356,822

On demand or
Carrying less than one One year to
2016 amount year five years
SR ‘000 SR ‘000 SR ‘000
Trade payable and other lisbilities 233,683 233,683 -
Due to related parties 5,700 5,700 -
Short term loans 610,452 610,452 -
Medium and long tenm loan 530,806 83,502 447.304
1,380,641 533,337 447,304

As at December 31, 2017 the Group’s current labilities exceed its current assets. The Group is managing its future cash
flow requirements through the cash inflows from operations and unavailed credit facilities (note 15). Management is
confident of its ability (o renew these facilities 25 they become due and avail new facilities a3 required.

Liguidity rigk is managed by monitoring on a regular basis that sufficient funds and banking and uther credit facilities are

svailable to meet the Group’s future commitments. The Group's terms of sales require amounts to be paid cither on 2 cash
or on 2 credit term basis.
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29, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continced)

29.2 Financinl instruments and related disclosures {Continued)

29.2.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such a3 interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices will
affect the Group's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments due to fluciuation in the related finenciai
instruments value. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within ac-
ceptable parameters while optimizing relums.

Commission rate risk

Commission rate risk is the exposures to various risks associated with the effect of fluctuations in the prevailing interest
rales on the Group's financial positions and cash flows. The Group is exposed to interest rate risk on its interest bearing
assets and liabilities mafnly bank overdraft, bank facilities and other borrowings. Management limits the Group's interest
rate risk by monitoring changes in interest mies, Management monitors the changes in comunission rates and believes that
the cash flow and fair value commission rate risk to the Group is not significant.

The Group's receivables and payables carried at amortized cost are not subject to interest rate risk as defined in IFRS 7,
since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flaws will fluctuate because of a change in martket interest rates. Henee,
the Group is not exposed to fair value interest rate risk.

Commission rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For floating rate assets and liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount of the assets
or linhility outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole period. A 100 basis point increase
or decrease is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents management's
assessinent of the reasonably possible change in interest rates,

Incrense/ Decrease

in basis points of Effect on income for
interest rates the year
SR ‘000
December 31, 2017 SAR +100 10,556
SAR 100 (10,556}
December 31, 2016 SAR +100 10,578
SAR -100 (10,578)



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
{A BAUDI JOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

29, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
29.2 Financlal instruments and related disclosures {Continued)
29.2.3 Market risk (Continued)

i) Currency risks:

2924

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of the financial instruments will fluctuate due 1o changes in foreign exchange
rates, The Group’s major financial assets and financial [abilities are denominated in Saudi Riyal, US Dollars (USD), Euro
{EUR), Emirales Dirham {AED), and Egyptian Pounds (EGP). Saudi riyals are pegged to the US Dollar, consequently
balances in thase currencies sre not considered to represent a currency risk, Management manitors the fluctuations in Euro,
Egyptian Pound currency exchange rates with Saudi Riyals and manages its effect on the financial statements accordingly.
“The Group did not have any significant foreign currency denominated monetary assets or liabilities at the reporting date
except for assets and Liabilities in Egyptian Pound, for which it was exposed to foreign currency fluctuations. Consequently,
no foreign currency sensitivity analysis has been presented.

December 31, December 31, January I,

2017 s 2016

Currency SR *000 SR ‘D00 SR 000

Cash and cash equivalent usD 16,892 14,040 7.415
EUR 1,584 952 2456

EGP 5,549 13,148 14,602

AED 565 - -

24,590 28,140 24473

Trade receivables EGP 10,986 13,129 20,165
usb 71,494 46,345 82,719

EUR 7,665 7.036 8,485

96,145 66,510 111,369

Trade payable and other {iabilities EGP {5,856) {455) {1.928)
UsD 13,227y (8,401) {17.627)

EUR {5,542) (978) {960)

AED (197} {228) {652}

CHF () 50 -

GBP (%) (43 (22)

BHD (18} (18 (18)

(24,861) {10,174} {21,207}

Short-term foans EGP (3,159) (377 2,510}
UsD {5,690) (16,010} (11,606)

EUR - (880) -

(8,849) (17.267) {14,176}

Net statement of financial position exposure 87,025 67,209 100,459

Fair values of financial Instrements

The price that would be received to scit an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderty trensaction between muarket
participants at the measurement date. The Group’s financial assets consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivables
and some other assets, while its financial labilities consist of trade accounts payables, some accrued expenses and other
liabilities. The fair values of financial instruments are not materially different trom their carrying vaiues.
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29. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved}
29,2 Financial Instruments and related disclosures {Continued)

29.2.5 Capltal risk management

The Company's objectives when imanaging capital are to safeguard the Company's ability ta continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for sharcholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. ln order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or obtain / repay financing from
/ to financial institutions,

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages ils capital risk by menitoring its debt levels and liquid
assets and keeping in view future investment requirements and expectations of the shareholders. Debt is cajeulated as
1otal of long term finance and short term borrowings, Total capital comprises shareholders” equity as shown in the
statement of financial position under "share capital and reserves’ and net debt (net of cash and cash equivalent).

The salient information relating to capital risk management of the Group es of December 31, 2017 and 2016 were as
follows:

December 31, December 31, January 1,

017 2016 2016

SR ‘080 SR 000 SR 000

Total deht 1,152,294 1,141,258 1,827,208
Less: cash gnd bank balances (41,583) {43,269) (106,794)
Net debt 1,110,711 1,097,989 1,720,414
Total equity 739,788 912,959 432,474
Total capital employed 1,850,4%9 2,010,948 2,152,888
Gearing ratio 60.02% 54.60% 79.91%

36. TRANSITION TO IFRS

As stated in note 3.1, Group's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting standards
highlighted under International Financizl Reporting Standards (iFRS). The accounting policies described in note 4 have
been applied in preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31,2017, The comparative
information presented in the consolidated statement of financizl position in these consolidated financial statements is
for December 31, 2016 and in the preparation of an epening IFRS statement of financial position is at January 1, 2016
(the Group’s date of transition).
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TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2087

30. TRANSITION TO IFRS (Continued)

30.2 Effect of IFRS adoption on the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

For the year ended December 31, 2016

Revenue

Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Administrative expenses

Selling, marketing and distribution expenses
Research expenses

Operating proflt

Financial charges

Other expenses, net

Loss before zakat and Income tax
Zakat and income tax

Loss for the year

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Mem that will not be reclassified subse-
quently fo statement af profit or loss

Remeasurement of employee benefits

Ttem that may be reclassified subsequently to
statement of profit or loss

Exchange differences on translation of for-
eign operation

Total comprehensive loss for the year

December 31,
Note s Transition December 31,
30.4 SOCPA Adjustment 7016
SR ‘000 SR ‘006 SR 060
1,415,596 - 1,415,596
(1,214,020 - (1.214,0200
261,576 - 21,576
b (93,993) 3,481 (90,512}
{73,863) - {73.863)
{1.59%) - {1,599}
32,121 3481 35,602
a.b {75,677) (8,284) {83,961)
(18, 730) - {11,730)
{55,286) {4.803) {60,089)
{2,004} - (2,004
{57,290} {4,803) (62,093}
b - 3,508 3,508
- (45,548) {45.548)
(57,290} (46.843) (104.133)

e



TAKWEEN ADVANCED INDUSTRIES
(A SAUDIJOINT STOCK COMPANY)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
FORTHE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

30. TRANSITION TO IFRS (Continued)

30.3 Reconciliation of equity under IFRS and SOCPA.

December 3,

2016 January 1, 2016

Note 30.4 SR 000 SR 000

Total equity under SOCPA 936,801 455,021
femeasurement of medium and long term loans a (22,544) {15,913)
Increase in provision against employee benefits b (1,298) {6.634)
Total adjustments to equity (23,842) (22,547)
Total equity under IFRS 912.959 432,474

30.4 Notes to reconclliations

2} Re-messurement of medium and long term loans

b

k) B

3

-

-

Under SOCPA, the Group used to smortize debt arrangement cost on straight line basis. Upon conversion to IFRS the
Group has made an assessment to re-measure its debt arrangement cost related to its mediom and long tenm loans using
effective interest rate method as required by [AS 39. The effect of this change is a decrease in equity by SR 15.91 miliion
and SR 22.54 million as at January 1, 2016 and December 31, 2016 respectively. The effect on consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2016 is SR 6.63 tmiltion.

Empleyee benefits

Under SOCPA, the Grouyp accounted for employze benefits with reference to the mode of computation sti ptlated under the
Saudi Labor law. Under [FRS, the Group accounts for employee benefits as a defined benefit obligation recognized on
actuarinl basis. Accordingly, the Group appointed an independent actuary for the computation of the defined benefit Hiability
as at January 1, 2016 and onwards. The obligetion computed by the actuary as compared with the lisbility recorded under
SOCPA has resulted in an increase of SR 6,63 million and SR 1.30 miltion as at January I, 2016 and December 31, 2016
respectively.

The impact of acrearizl valuation for employee benefits in statement of profit or loss and comprehensive income is decrease
in expense by SR 1.84 million for the year ended Decermber 31, 2016, The actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2016
resulted in actuarial gain amounting to SR 3,51 willion which is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been reclassitied to conform to the presentation of the current year.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorized for issue on March 20,
2018 corresponding to Raiab 3, 1439H,



